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AM/ 006655 
 
To the Shareholders of  
Siniora Food Industries Company 
(A Public Shareholding Limited Company) 
Amman  Jordan 
 
 
Audit Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
 
Opinion  
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Siniora Food Industries Company 
(A Public S
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022, and the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated 
statement of changes in equity, and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2022, and its 
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting St . 
 
Basis for Opinion  
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the esponsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Group Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the other ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the Group
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
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Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters, in our professional judgment, are the most significant matters in our audit of 
the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
 

dit of the 
consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. 
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The 
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, 
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 
 
A description was provided on how to examine each of the matters referred to below in the audit 
procedures: 
 

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
 

Impairment of goodwill and trademarks 
As at December 31, 2022, the carrying 
amount of goodwill and trademarks was 
approximately JD 15.2 million, which is 12% 
of the total assets. The trademarks are 
deemed to have indefinite useful lives. 
 
In accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of 
Assets, the Group is required to test 
goodwill acquired in a business combination 
and intangible assets with indefinite useful 
lives for impairment at least annually 
irrespective of whether there is any 
indication of impairment  
 
An impairment is recognized in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss 
when the recoverable amount is less than 
the net carrying amount, as described in 
note (2) to the consolidated financial 
statements. The determination of the 
recoverable amount is mainly based on 
discounted future cash flows. 
 
We considered the impairment of goodwill 
and trademarks to be a key audit matter, 
given the method for determining the 
recoverable amount and the significance of 

consolidated financial statements. In 
addition, the recoverable amounts are based 
on the use of important assumptions, 
estimates or assessments made by 
management, in particular future cash flow 
projections, the estimate of the discount 
rates and long-term growth rates. 

 

 
We familiarized ourselves with the process 
implemented by the Group to determine the 
recoverable amount of goodwill and trademarks 
allocated to Cash-Generating Units (CGU). Our 
work consisted of: 

 Evaluating the design and implementation of 
co
trademarks for impairment; 

 Assessing the principles and methods used for 
determining the recoverable amounts of the CGU 
to which the goodwill and trademarks are allocated 
and assessing that the methods used are in 
accordance with IFRSs; 

 Reconciling the net carrying amount of the 
goodwill and trademarks allocated to the CGU 
tested with the G  

 Engaged our internal valuation specialist to assess 
the discount rate applied by benchmarking against 
independent data; 

 Substantiating by interviews with management the 
key assumptions on which budget estimates 
underlying the cash flows used in the valuation 
models are based. For this purpose, we also 
compared the estimates of cash flow projections of 
previous periods with actual corresponding results, 
to assess the pertinence and reliability of the 
process for making forecasts; 

 Substantiating the results of sensitivity analyses 
carried out by management by comparing them to 
those realized by us; 

 Verifying the arithmetical accuracy of the 
valuations used by the Group. 

 We also assessed the disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements, relating to this 
matter, against the requirements of IFRSs. 
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 
 
Hyperinflation accounting of Turkish subsidiary 
As disclosed in note (2) to the consolidated financial 
statements, the economy of the Republic of Turkey 
was deemed a hyperinflationary economy in 
accordance with the requirements of IAS 29 
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies 

 
 
The Group performed the hyperinflation calculations 
which included utilizing the consumer price indexes 
as a key input into the calculations. The financial 
results of Tarakya Company for the Manufacture and 
Trade of Meat and Dairy Products, (a subsidiary) 
located in the Republic of Turkey, are translated to 
the Group s reporting currency, using the official 
exchange rate published by the Central Bank of the 
Republic of Turkey as at December 31, 2022.  
 
The loss on the monetary position is calculated as 
the difference resulting from the restatement of net 
non-monetary assets, equity and items in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 

assets and liabilities. The application of IAS (21) The 

ction with the application of IAS 29 
resulted in a net monetary gain of JD 496 thousand, 
being which was recognized in consolidated profit or 
loss for the year and JD 8.8 million in other 
comprehensive income.  
 
The application of the requirements of IFRSs relative 
to hyperinflation and the assessment of the 
applicable exchange rate were areas that required 
significant auditor attention. Given the significance 
of the quantitative impact, the complexities 
associated with hyperinflationary accounting and the 
extent of audit effort required, the application of 

located in the Republic of Turkey and the related 
disclosures were deemed to be a Key Audit Matter. 

 
 
We familiarized ourselves with the process 
implemented by the Group to apply IAS 29. Our 
work consisted of: 
 

 We obtained an understanding of the process 
implemented by the Group to determine the 
hyperinflation adjustments and disclosures.  

 
 We assessed the controls over this area to 

determine if they had been designed and 
implemented appropriately.  

 
 We utilized our internal IFRS accounting 

specialists to conclude on the appropriate 
application of IAS 21 and IAS 29.  

 
 We assessed the inputs into the hyperinflation 

calculations with specific emphasis on the 
consumer price indices used by agreeing them 
to independent sources.  

 
 We reperformed the mathematical accuracy of 

the hyperinflation adjustments.  
 

 We determined if the exchange rates used to 
translate the results of Tarakya Company for 
the Manufacture and Trade of Meat and Dairy 
Products financial statement were determined 
in accordance with the requirements of IFRSs.  

 
 We assessed the disclosure in the consolidated 

financial statements relating to this area 
against the requirements of IFRSs. 
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Other Information 
Management is responsible for other information. Other information consists of information
provided in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and the related

l be provided to us at a later date of this
report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not include other 
information and we do not express any type of assertion or conclusion about it. 
 
Regarding the audit of the consolidated financial statements, it is our responsibility to read 
the above mentioned information when it becomes available to us, assessing whether the 
other information is not materially consistent with the consolidated financial statements or 
information obtained through our audit or that other information includes material 
misstatement.  
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance in the 
Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management 
determines necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing 
the Group ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern, and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.
 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group nancial reporting 
process. 
 

ponsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and t able assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in ac
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than the one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion on 
effectiveness of internal control. 
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the  use of the going concern basis of 
accounting, and based on the audit evidenced obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group ty 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attentio
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
a wever, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

 
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

 
Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the Group  audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguard procedures. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year, and 
are therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our a nless 
law and regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  
The Group maintains proper accounting records duly organized and in line with the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements. We recommend that the General Assembly 
of Shareholders approve these consolidated financial statements. 
 

Amman  Jordan 
March 29, 2023 

 
Deloitte & Touche (M.E) - Jordan 
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  December 31, 
ASSETS Note   

Current Assets:  JD JD 
Cash on hand and at banks    
Accounts receivable - net     
Inventory  net    
Due from related parties    
Other debit balances     

Total Current Assets    
    
Non-Current Assets:    
Deferred tax assets    
Intangible assets    
Property and equipment  net    
Right-of-use assets    

Total Non-Current Assets    

TOTAL ASSETS    

    
LIABILITIES    

Current Liabilities:    
Borrowed fund due within one year    
Notes payable    
Accounts payable    
Due to related parties    
Deposits and accrued expenses    
Lease liabilities due within one year    
Income tax provision    

Total Current Liabilities    
    
Non-Current Liabilities:    
Borrowed fund due within more than one year    
Lease liabilities due within more than one year    
Provision for end-of-service indemnity     
Deferred tax liabilities   - 

Total Non-Current liabilities    
Total liabilities    

    
OWNERS' EQUITY    

Paid-up capital    
Statutory reserve    
Retained earnings    
Effect of the purchase of non-controlling interest shares  (2,463,786) (2,463,786) 
Foreign currencies translation differences  (6,136,331) (9,665,196) 
Actuarial gains (losses) arising from the end of service indemnity    (5,749) 
     TOTAL SHAREHOLERS  EQUITY     
Non-controlling interest    

TOTAL OWNERS  EQUITY    

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY    
 

 
THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM. 
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For the Year Ended  

December 31, 

 Note   

  JD JD 
Net sales    

Cost of sales  (96,438,175) (74,955,095) 

Gross Profit    

Selling and distribution expenses  (14,288,769) (12,120,494) 

General and administrative expenses   (11,122,826) (9,547,013) 

Financing expenses  (5,093,126) (2,591,840) 
(Provision) for end-of-service indemnity  (818,921) (486,608) 

(Provision) for expected credit loss   (148,047) (142,292) 
Provision  for slow-moving inventory   (176,754) (106,969) 

(Provision) / Released from lawsuits and other commitments  (130,012)  

Other revenue - net     
Profit for the year before taxes and monetary gain from 

hyperinflation    

Income tax expense  (765,392) (1,244,931) 

Profit for the year before monetary gain from hyperinflation    
Net monetary gain from hyperinflation    

Profit for the Year    

    
Attributable to:    
Company s shareholder    
Non- Controlling Interest  (155,014)  

    

    
    
Earning Per Share for the Year (Company s shareholders)     

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM. 
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THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM. 

   

 
For the Year 

Ended December 31,

   

 JD JD 

Profit for the year   

   

Other comprehensive income items which may be reclassified to profit 
or loss in the subsequent period   

Foreign currencies translation differences   (12,552,201) 

   
Other comprehensive income items that will not be reclassified to profit 
or loss in the subsequent period   

Actuarial gain (losses) arising from the end of service indemnity  (7,466) 

    Total other comprehensive income / (loss) items for the Year  (12,559,667) 

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the Year  (4,528,308) 

   

 Attributable to:    

 Company's shareholders  (1,852,309) 

 Non-controlling interest   (2,675,999) 

  (4,528,308) 
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For the Year Ended 

December 31, 

 Note   

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:  JD JD
Profit for the year before income tax and net monetary gains from hyperinflation    
Adjustments:    
Depreciation of property and equipment    
Depreciation of right of use assets    
Amortization of intangible assets    
Provision for expected credit loss     
Provision for end-of-service indemnity    
Provision for slow-moving inventory     
Provision (released) for lawsuits and other commitments   (167,157) 
(Gain) from the sale of property and equipment   (72,521) 
Financing expenses    
Monetary gain as a result of hyperinflation  (4,95,573) - 
Foreign currency differences  (429,315) (3,430,596) 

Cash flow from Operating Activities before Changes in Working Capital    
Decrease (increase) in assets    
Accounts receivable  (4,771,350)  
Due from related parties  (41,343) (454,757) 
Inventory  (6,409,599) (467,147) 
Other debit balances  (1,613,604) (755,761) 
Increase (decrease) in liabilities    
Notes payable  (371,186)  
Accounts payable    (3,737,601) 
Due to related parties  (118,503)  

Deposits and accrued expenses    (346,666) 

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities before Income Tax and 
Employees End-of-Service Indemnity Paid    

Income tax paid  (1,336,419) (1,345,755) 
Provision for end-of-service indemnity paid  (268,636) (336,462) 
Provision for lawsuits and other commitments paid  (98,900) (166,549) 

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities    

    
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:    
(Purchase) of property and equipment  (10,413,573) (8,476,385) 
(Payments) to purchase subsidiary  - (16,217,032) 
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment    
(Purchase) of intangible assets  (95,374) (21,708) 

Net Cash (used in) Investing Activities  (10,346,531) (24,582,840) 

   
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:    
Borrowed fund  net    
Financing expenses paid  (5,093,126) (2,591,840) 
Dividends paid  (4,760,000) (4,050,000) 
Lease liabilities paid (790,344) (536,137) 
Non -controlling interest share from increase the paid-up capital  -  

Net Cash flow from Financing Activities    
   

Net Increase in Cash    
Cash on hand and at banks - beginning of the year    

Cash on Hand and at Banks - End of the Year    

   

   Non-Cash transactions    

   Increase in paid-up capital through retained earnings  -  

 
 

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM. 
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 General 
a. Siniora Food Industries Company was established and registered at the Ministry of Industry 

and Trade as a limited liability Company under No. (2890) on July 27, 1992 with an 
authorized and paid-up capital of JD 400, id-up capital has been 
increased several times, the last increase was in the extraordinary meeting held on April 21, 
2021, whereby the General Assembly decided to approve the increase of the Company's 
capital by JD 1 million / share to become JD 28 million / share. The Company has completed 
the legal procedures related to the capital increase with the regulatory authorities on June 20, 
2021. 
 

b. Following the Ministry of Industry and Trade Letter No, msh/2/2890/32377 dated November 
11, 2008, which includes the approval of the Minister of Industry and Trade on transforming 
the legal form of Siniora Food Industries Company from a limited liability company to a public 
shareholding limited company, the General Assembly approved in its ordinary meeting dated 
February 4, 2009, the procedures followed to t form from a 
limited liability company to a public shareholding limited company, moreover, the Company 
has been registered as a public shareholding limited company in the Public Shareholding 
Companies Register under number (459) on January 8, 2009. 

 
c. The Company was registered under Number 07/6315110301 to practice industrial activity on 

the king Abdullah ll / Sahab.  
 
d. The Company is 65.6% owned by Arab Palestinian Investment Company, which is considered 

the main shareholder of the Company. 
 
e. The Group  objectives are producing, selling and buying meat and its byproducts; 

importing and exporting the necessary raw materials; and producing food products and 
trading in them. 

 
f. The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on March 26, 2023. 
 
g. The company owns the following subsidiaries as of December 31, 2022:  
 

Name of Company 
Paid-up 
Capital 

Percentage 
of 

Ownership 

Industry 
of the 

Company Location  
Acquisition / 

Inception Date 

Siniora Food Industries - Palestine USD 5.2 million  Industrial Palestine January 25, 2006 
Siniora Food Holding Limited  AED 60 million   Holding United Arab Emirates February 25, 2016 
Tarakya Company for the 
Manufacture and Trade of Meat 
and Dairy Products  TL 71.4 million  Industrial Turkey March 1, 2021 

 

- As of December 31, 2022, and 2021, Siniora Food Holding Limited owns the following 
subsidiary companies: 

Name of Company Paid-up Capital 

Percentage 
of 

Ownership 
Industry of 
the Company Location  

Acquisition / 
Inception Date 

Saudi Siniora Trading SAR 10 million  Trading Saudi Arabia August 17, 2009 
Diamond Meat Processing AED 300 thousand  Manufacturing United Arab Emirates April 5, 2016 
Siniora Gulf General Trading AED 1 million   Trading United Arab Emirates August 6, 2014 
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The following most significant financial information for the subsidiary companies for the years 
2022 and 2021: 

 December 31, 2022 For the Year 2022 

Name of Company 
Total 

Assets 
Total 

Liabilities 
Total 

Revenues 
Total 

Expenses 

 JD JD JD JD 

Siniora Food Industries - Palestine     

Siniora Food Holding Limited      

Trakya Company for the Manufacture and 
Trade of Meat and Dairy Products     

 December 31, 2021 For the Year 2021 

Name of Company 
Total 

Assets 
Total 

Liabilities 
Total 

Revenues 
Total 

Expenses 

 JD JD JD JD 

Siniora Food Industries - Palestine     

Siniora Food Holding Limited      
Tarakya Company for the Manufacture and 
Trade of Meat and Dairy Products     

 Significant Accounting Policies 
Basis of Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the standards 
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and interpretations issued by the 
International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee (IFRIC). 

 

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost 
principle for measurement adjusted for the effect of inflation where the entities operate in 
hyperinflationary economies. 
 

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented in Jordanian Dinar, which 
is also its functional currency. 

 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements 
are consistent with those applied in the year ended December 31, 2021 except for the effect 
of adopting the new and modified standards which are effective for the annual period 
beginning on or after January 1, 2021 stated in notes (3-A) that have no material effect on 
the consolidated financial statements except the effect of applying International Accounting 

 due to exist of hyperinflation 

in the Republic of Turkey and as follows: 

 
Classification of Turkey as a hyperinflationary economy 
From April 1, 2022, the Turkish economy has been considered hyperinflationary based on the 
criteria established by International Accounting Standard 29, 'Financial Reporting in 
Hyperinflationary Economies' ('IAS 29'). This designation is determined following an 
assessment of a series of qualitative and quantitative circumstances, including the presence 
of accumulative inflation rate of more than 100% over the previous three years.  
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IAS 29 requires that financial information are stated in terms of the measuring unit current at the 
statement of financial position date which requires restatement of non-monetary assets and 
liabilities to reflect the changes in the general purchasing power of the Turkish Lira. The 
restatements were calculated using the consumer price index in the local currency of the reporting 
entity before converting it to the presentation currency of the Group's financial statements. 

 
As of December 31, 2022 the three-years cumulative index was 156% based on the Turkish 
C
the reporting period was 687 and closed at 1,128, resulting in an increase of 64%. 

 
The following are summarized for the basic principles in relation to the applying in the consolidated 
financial statements:  

 

 Adjustment of the historical carrying values of non-monetary assets and liabilities and the 
various items of equity from their date of acquisition or inclusion in the consolidated statement 
of financial position to the end of the reporting period to reflect the changes in purchasing 
power of the currency caused by inflation, according to the indices published by the Turkish 
Statistical Institute. The cumulative impact for previous years amounting to approximately JD 
8.8 million has been reflected in equity through other comprehensive income. The Group 
comparative amounts are not restated since its presented in a stable currency. 

 
 Monetary assets and liabilities, which are carried at amounts current at the date of statement 

of financial position, are not restated because they are already expressed in terms of the 
monetary unit current at the date of statement of financial position.

 
 Non-monetary assets and liabilities, which are not carried at amounts current at the date of 

applying the relevant conversion factors from the date of the transaction. 
 
 All items in the statement of profit or loss are restated by applying the average conversion 

factors during the year except for those amounts deriving from non-monetary items, which 
are calculated based on the restated values of the related items. 

 
 ded in the 

consolidated statement of profit or loss as monetary gain or loss. 
 

Hyperinflation adjustments considered as a temporary tax difference, accordingly, deferred tax 
liabilities were calculated on these differences and recorded around JD 1.9 million shown within non-
current liabilities. 

Basis of Consolidation  
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and 
entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when the Company:

 Has the power over the investee; 

 Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

 Has the ability to use its power to affects its returns. 

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances 
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. 
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When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it considers 
that it has power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical 
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all 
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company s voting rights in an 
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

 The size of the Company s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of 
holdings of the other vote holders; 

 Potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties; 

 Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and 

 Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not 
have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be 
made, including voting patterns at previous sharehol eetings. 

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and 
ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, the results of 
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in consolidated income 
statement from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to 
control the subsidiary. 

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners 

of the Company and to the non controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of the 

subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non controlling interests 

even if this results in the non controlling interests having a deficit balance. 

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the 

accounting policies used into line with the Company s accounting policies. 

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to 

transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation. 

Non controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group s equity 

therein. Those interests of non controlling shareholders that are present ownership interests 

entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets upon liquidation may initially be 

measured at fair value or at the non controlling interests proportionate share of the fair value 

of the acquiree s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement is made on an 

acquisition by acquisition basis. Other non controlling interests are initially measured at fair 

value. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non controlling interests is the amount 

of those interests at initial recognition plus the non controlling interests  share of subsequent 

changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non controlling interests even if 

this results in the non controlling interests having a deficit balance. 
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C

accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying a

non controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the 

subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non controlling interests are 

adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity 

and attributed to the owners of the Company. 

When the Company loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal recognised in 

income statement is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of 

the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous 

carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), less liabilities of the subsidiary and any 

non controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in 

relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed of the 

related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary. The fair value of any investment retained in the 

former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial 

recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments when applicable, or 

the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture. 

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies  
The financial statements of subsidiaries whose functional currencies are the currencies of 
hyperinflationary economies are adjusted in terms of the measuring unit current at the end of 
the reporting period.  

In the first period of application, the adjustments determined at the beginning of the period are 
recognized directly in equity as an adjustment to opening retained earnings. In subsequent 
periods, the prior period adjustments related to components of owners' equity and differences 
arising on translation of comparative amounts are accounted for in other comprehensive 
income. 
 

Items in the consolidated statement of financial position not already expressed in terms of the 
measuring unit current at the end of the reporting period, such as non-monetary items carried 
at cost or cost less depreciation, are restated by applying a general price index. The restated 
cost, or cost less depreciation, of each item is determined by applying to its historical cost and 
accumulated depreciation the change in a general price index from the date of acquisition to the 
end of the reporting period. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss if the restated 
amount of a non-monetary item exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.  

At the beginning of the first period of application, the components of owners' equity, except 
retained earnings, are restated by applying a general price index from the dates the 
components were contributed or otherwise arose. Restated retained earnings are derived from 
all other amounts in the restated consolidated statement of financial position.  

At the end of the first period and in subsequent periods, all components of owners' equity are 
restated by applying a general price index from the beginning of the period or the date of 
contribution, if later. 

All items recognized in the statement of profit or loss are restated by applying the change in 
the general price index from the dates when the items of income and expenses were initially 
earned or incurred. 

Gains or losses on the net monetary position are recognized in profit or loss.  

All items in the consolidated statement of cash flows are expressed in terms of the general 
price index at the end of the reporting period. 
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Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost after deducting the accumulated depreciation or any 
impairment loss. And the cost includes all the direct costs which are related to the ownership of 
the assets. 
 
Property and equipment are depreciated (except for land), using the straight-line method at 
annual rates ranging from 2% to 25%. 

When the expected recoverable amount of any property and equipment is less than its net book 
value, the net book value is reduced to the expected recoverable amount, and the impairment 
loss is taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.  
 

ted 
useful life differs from the previous estimate, the difference is recorded in subsequent years as 
a change in accounting estimates. 
 
Property and equipment are disposed of when there are no expected future benefits from its 
use or its disposal.
 
Property and equipment in hyper inflationary economies are restated by applying the change in 
the general price indices from the date of acquisition to the current reporting date. Depreciation 
on these assets are based on the restated amounts. 

Intangible Assets  
Goodwill 
Goodwill is booked at cost, and represents the excess amount paid to acquire or purchase on 

re of the fair value of the net assets of the 
subsidiary at the acquisition date, Goodwill resulting from the investment in a subsidiary is 
booked as a separate item within intangible assets, and reduced subsequently for any 
impairment loss.  

Goodwill is distributed among cash generating unit(s) for the purpose of impairment test. 
 

The value of goodwill is reviewed on the date of the consolidated financial statements, Goodwill 
value is reduced when there is evidence that it is impaired or the recoverable value of the cash 
generating unit(s) is less than the book value of the cash generating unit(s), The decline in 
value is booked as an impairment loss and charged to the consolidated statement of profit or 
loss. 

Other Intangible Assets 
Intangible assets purchased in an acquisition are stated at fair value at the date of acquisition. 
Other intangible assets purchased other than through acquisition are recorded at cost. 

Intangible assets are to be classified on the basis of either definite or indefinite useful life, 
Intangible assets with definite useful lives are amortized over their useful lives and charged to 
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, Intangible assets with indefinite lives are reviewed 
for impairment as of the consolidated financial statements date, and impairment loss is charged 
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 

No capitalization of intang
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year incurred.

 
Any indications of impairment in the value of intangible assets as of the consolidated financial 
statements date are reviewed. Furthermore, the estimated useful lives of the impaired 
intangible assets are reassessed, and any adjustments are made in the subsequent periods. 
 
Intangible assets are amortized over their expected production life by 20% to 35% annual 
percentages.

Intangible assets in hyper inflationary economies are restated by applying the change in the 
general price indices from the date of acquisition to the current reporting date. Amortization on 
these assets are based on the restated amounts. 
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Project Under Constructions 
Projects under construction are stated at cost, including the value of the works under completion, 
the expenses of the units, the borrowing cost and the bank interest related to it and are related to 
the direct costs that are deferred until the completion of the project or the capitalization on the final 
receipt date. 

Inventory
Finished goods and work in process are stated at cost (using the first  in, first - out method) or net 
realizable value, whichever is lower after deducting the provision for expired and slow-moving items, 
cost includes raw materials cost, direct labor and other manufacturing overheads. Net realizable 
value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated completion costs and costs to be 
incurred in marketing, selling and distribution. 

Spare parts are valued at cost (using the first-in, first-out method) or net realizable value, 
whichever is lower. Spare parts are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when 
used. 

A provision recorded against the slow-moving and damaged inventory, so that the inventory is 
stated at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower according to the IFRSs. 
 
Foreign Currencies  
For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each 
group company are expressed in the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation 
currency for the consolidated financial statements. 

The individual financial statements of each group company are presented in the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which it operates (its functional currency). In preparing the 

functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the 
dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the 
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are 
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. 

Exchange differences are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which 
they arise except for: 

 
Exchange differences on transactions entered into to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and 
 
Exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for 
which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future (therefore 
forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in 
other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to consolidated statement of profit or 
loss on disposal or partial disposal of the net investment. 

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the 
grou
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless 
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the 
date of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in the 
consolidated OCI and accumulated in a separate component of equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Company
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation 
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign 
operation of which the retained interest become a financial asset), all of the exchange differences 
accumulated in a separate component of equity in respect of that operation attributable to the 
owners of the Company are reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or loss. 

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that does 
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated 
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interest and are not recognized in 
consolidated statement of profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of 
associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint 
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to 
consolidated statement of profit or loss. 
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Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue mainly from sale of goods (Cold Cuts, Frozen and Cans). 

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled 
(net after returns and discounts) in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected 
on behalf of third parties. The Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control of a 
product or service to a customer, being when the goods have been shipped to the specific 
location (delivery). Following delivery, the customer has full discretion over the manner of 
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility when onselling the goods 
and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is recognised 
by the Company when the goods are delivered to the customer as this represents the point in 
time at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is 
required before payment is due. 

If customers have a right of return. At the point of sale, a refund liability and a corresponding 
adjustment to revenue is recognised for those products expected to be returned. At the same 
time, the Company has a right to recover the product when customers exercise their right of 
return so consequently recognises a right to returned goods asset and a corresponding 
adjustment to cost of sales. The Group uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate 
the number of returns on a portfolio level using the expected value method. It is considered 
highly probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised will not occur 
given the consistent level of returns over previous years. 

For certain customers, the goods are sold with discounts retroactively on the basis of 12 
months of total sales. Revenue of these sales is recognized based on the price specified in the 
contract less estimated discounts. The Group uses its accumulated historical experience to 
estimate discounts and the revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will 
be no material reversal. Liabilities for discounts on payments to customers are recovered in 
respect of sales made during the year. 

The Group account for consideration payable to a customer (listing fee and promotional 
expenses) which occur in conjunction with purchase of goods from the Company as a reduction 
of the transaction, unless the payment to the customer is in exchange for a distinct good or 
service that the customer transfers to the Company.  

Interest Income and Expenses 
Interest income and expense for all financial instruments are recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial instrument through the 
expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The future cash flows are estimated 
taking into account all the contractual terms of the instrument. 

 
The interest income/ interest expense is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying 
amount of non-credit impaired financial assets (at the amortised cost of the financial asset 
before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance), or to the amortised cost of financial 
liabilities. For credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is calculated by applying the 
EIR to the amortised cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (the gross carrying amount less 
the allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs)). For financial assets originated or purchased 
credit-impaired (POCI) the EIR reflects the ECLs in determining the future cash flows expected 
to be received from the financial asset. 
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Financial Instrument  
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Group of financial 
position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities 
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as 
appropriate, on initial recognition.  
 
Financial Assets  
Financial assets are recognised in the Group tement of financial position when the Group 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are initially 
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
issue of financial assets (except for financial assets at fair value through statement of profit or 
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets, as appropriate, on 
initial recognition. 

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised 
cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised 
cost: 

 The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets 
in order to collect contractual cash flows; 
 

 The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.  

All other financial assets are measured at fair value. 
 

Amortised cost and effective interest method 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument 
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. 

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest 
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, 
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the 
gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or originated 
credit impaired financial assets, a credit adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by 
discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the amortised 
cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.
 
Foreign exchange gains and losses  
The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in a foreign currency is 
determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting 
period. For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not part of a designated 
hedging relationship, exchange differences are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or 
loss. 
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Impairment of financial assets  
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on trade receivables. 
The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in 
credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The expected credit losses on 
these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic 
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions 
at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate. 

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Lifetime ECL represents the expected 
credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial 
instrument. 

Provision for expected credit loss 
The Group has adopted the simplified approach to recognize expected credit losses over the life 
of its receivables as permitted by IFRS 9. Accordingly, non-impaired trade receivables that do 
not contain a significant financing component have been classified as part of stage 2 with the 
recognition of expected credit losses over their lifetime  

A provision for the expected credit loss should be recognized over the life of the financial 
instrument if the credit risk on that financial instrument increases substantially since the initial 
recognition and the expected credit loss is an expected weighted estimate of the present value 
of the credit loss. This value is measured as the present value of the difference between the 
cash flows due to the Company under the contract and the cash flows that the Company 
expects to receive arising from the expectation of several future economic scenarios, 
discounted at the effective interest rate of the asset. 

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis 
for each asset of individual value and collectively for other assets that are not individually 
significant. 

Provisions for loss of credit losses are presented as a reduction of the total carrying amount of 
financial assets at amortized cost. 

Write off 
The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in 
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor 
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of 
trade receivables, when the amounts are over 24 months past due, whichever occurs sooner. 
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group s 
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made 
are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. 

 
Derecognition of financial assets 
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor 
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the 
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated 
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the 
financial asset 

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the 
asset s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised 
in consolidated statement of profit or loss. 
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Classification as debt or equity 
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a 
financial liability and an equity instrument. 

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity 
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recognised at the proceeds received, 
net of direct issue costs. 

Repurchase of the Group s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in 
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or 
cancellation of the Group ts.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method or at fair value through consolidated statement of profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business 
combination, (ii) held for trading, or (iii) designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

Trade and other payables classified as financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net 
of transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. Interest expenses are recognised based on effective interest rate. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability 
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the 
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the 
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial 
liability. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the 
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised 
consolidated statement of profit or loss. 

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to 
settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and 
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 

Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, 
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value 
of money is material). 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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Benefits 
Short term employee benefits 
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is 
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive 
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the 
obligation can be estimated reliably. 

Other long term employee benefits 
 net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future 

benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. 
That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Remeasurements are recognised in 
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. 

Income tax 
Income tax expenses represent accrued taxes and deferred taxes. 

Income tax expenses are accounted for on the basis of taxable income, Moreover, taxable 
income differs from income declared in the financial statements because the latter includes 
non-taxable revenue or tax expenses not deductible in the current year but deductible in 
subsequent years, accumulated losses acceptable by the tax authorities, items not accepted for 
tax purposes or subject to tax. 

Taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates prescribed according to the prevailing laws, 
regulations and instructions of the countries where the Group operates. 

 
Deferred taxes are taxes expected to be paid or recovered as a result of the temporary timing 
differences between the value of assets or liabilities in the consolidated financial statements 
and the value on the basis of which taxable income is calculated, Moreover, deferred taxes are 
calculated based on the liability method in the consolidated statement of financial position 
according to the tax rates expected to be applied upon the settlement of the tax liability or 
realization of the deferred tax assets. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reviewed as of the date of the consolidated financial 
statements, and reduced in case no benefit is expected to arise therefrom, partially or totally.
 
Fair Value Measurement 
Fair value is defined as the a price at which an asset is to be sold or paid to convert any of the 
liabilities in a structured transaction between the market participants on the measurement 
date, irrespective of whether the price can be realized directly or whether it is estimated using 
another valuation technique. When estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the 
Company takes into consideration when determining the price of any asset or liability whether 
market participants are required to take these factors into account at the measurement date. 
The fair value of the measurement and / or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is 
determined on the same basis, except for measurement measures that are similar to fair value 
procedures and are not fair value such as fair value as used in IAS 36  

In addition, fair value measurements are classified for the purposes of financial reporting to 
level (1) or (2) or (3) based on the extent to which the inputs are clear to fair value 
measurements and the importance of inputs to the full fair value measurements, which are 
identified as follows  

Input Level (1) inputs derived from quoted (unadjusted) prices of identical assets or liabilities 
in active markets that the enterprise can obtain on the measurement date; 

Input level (2) inputs derived from data other than quoted prices used at level 1 and 
observable for assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly; and; 

Input level (3) are inputs to assets or liabilities that are not based on quoted market prices  
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Leases 
The Group as lessee 
The Group assesses whether contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The 
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all 
lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases 
with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the 
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in 
which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not 
paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate 
cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise: 
 Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives; 
 Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the 

index or rate at the commencement date; 
 The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
 The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the 

options; and 
 Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an 

option to terminate the lease 

The lease liability is presented as a separate line item in the consolidated  statement of financial 
position. 

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect 
interest on the lease liability (using effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying 
amount to reflect the lease payments made. 

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related 
right-of-use asset) whenever: 

 The lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a 
purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised 
lease payments using a revised discount rate. 

 The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected 
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured 
by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease 
payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revise 
discount rate is used). 

 A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate 
lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease 
payments using a revised discount rate. 

The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of 
the underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the 
right-of-use of asset reflects that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related 
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation 
starts at the commencement date of the lease. 

The right-of-use of assets are presented as a separate line in consolidated the statement of 
financial position. 

The Group applies IAS (36) to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts 
 

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of 
the lease liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised as an 
expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and 

consolidated statement of profit or loss. 
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The Group as lessor 
The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to some of its investment 
properties. 

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever 
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the 
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating 
leases. 

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sublease as 
two separate contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference 
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. 

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are 
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term. 

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of 
the Group
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company
outstanding in respect of the leases.  

When a contract includes lease and non-lease components, the Group applies IFRS (15) to 
allocate consideration under the contract to each component. 

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 
At the reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is evidence that the asset has been 
impaired. If any evidence exists, or when an impairment test is required, the Group assesses 
the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of the asset is the fair value of 
the asset or cash-generating unit less cost of sales and value in use whichever is higher and is 
determined for the individual asset, unless the asset does not generate substantially 
independent internal cash flows from those arising from other assets or assets of the Group. 
Where the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit exceeds the recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered to be impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 
In assessing the fair value used, future cash flows are discounted to their present fair value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
funds and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of sales, recent 
transactions in the market are taken into consideration if available. If such transactions can not 
be identified, the appropriate valuation model is used. 

Offsetting 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the 
consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
the recognized amounts and intends to either settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. 
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 Adoption of new and revised Standards 
a. New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year 

The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2022, have been adopted in these consolidated financial statements for the 
Group. The application of these revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts 
reported for the current and prior years but may affect the accounting for future transactions or 
arrangements. 

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations  Reference to the Conceptual 
Framework 
The amendments update IFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of 
the 1989 Framework. They also add to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within the scope 
of IAS 37, an acquirer applies IAS 37 to determine whether at the acquisition date a present 
obligation exists as a result of past events. For a levy that would be within the scope of IFRIC 21 
Levies, the acquirer applies IFRIC 21 to determine whether the obligating event that gives rise to 
a liability to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition date. 

Amendments to IAS 16  Property, Plant and Equipment Proceeds before Intended 
Use 
The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment 
any proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is available for use, i.e. proceeds 
while bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating 
in the manner intended by management. Consequently, an entity recognises such sales proceeds 
and related costs in profit or loss. The entity measures the cost of those items in accordance with 
IAS 2 Inventories. 

IAS 16 now specifies this as assessing whether the technical and physical performance of the 
asset is such that it is capable of being used in the production or supply of goods or services, for 
rental to others, or for administrative purposes. 

If not presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income, the financial statements 
shall disclose the amounts of proceeds and cost included in profit or loss that relate to items 

statement of comprehensive income include(s) such proceeds and cost. 

Amendments to IAS 37  Onerous Contracts Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 

 contract consist of both the incremental 
costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour or materials) and an allocation of 
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the 
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). 

 
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 
The annual improvements include amendments to four standards: 

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 
The amendment provides additional relief to a subsidiary which becomes a first-time adopter later 
than its parent in respect of accounting for cumulative translation differences. As a result of the 
amendment, a subsidiary that uses the exemption in IFRS 1:D16 (a) can now also elect to 
measure cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations at the carrying amount that 

consolidated financial statements, based on the pa
transition to IFRS Standards, if no adjustments were made for consolidation procedures and for 
the effects of the business combination in which the parent acquired the subsidiary. A similar 
election is available to an associate or joint venture that uses the exemption in IFRS 1:D16 (a). 

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
per 

financial liability, an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) 
and the l
behalf. 

IFRS 16 Leases 
The amendment removes the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements. 

IAS 41 Agriculture 
The amendment removes the requirement in IAS 41 for entities to exclude cash flows for taxation 
when measuring fair value. This aligns the fair value measurement in IAS 41 with the 
requirements of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement to use internally consistent cash flows and 
discount rates and enables preparers to determine whether to use pretax or post-tax cash flows 
and discount rates for the most appropriate fair value measurement. 
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b. New and Revised Standards in issue but not yet effective 
At the date of authorization of these consolidated financial statements, the Group has not applied 
the following new and revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective:

New and revised IFRSs Effective date 
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (including the June 2020 
amendments to IFRS 17) 
IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes IFRS 4 
Insurance Contracts. 
 

IFRS 17 outlines a general model, which is modified for insurance contracts 
with direct participation features, described as the variable fee approach. 
The general model is simplified if certain criteria are met by measuring the 
liability for remaining coverage using the premium allocation approach. 
 

The general model uses current assumptions to estimate the amount, 
timing and uncertainty of future cash flows and it explicitly measures the 
cost of that uncertainty. It takes into account market interest rates and 

and guarantees. 
 

In June 2020, the Board issued Amendments to IFRS 17 to address 
concerns and implementation challenges that were identified after IFRS 17 
was published. The amendments defer the date of initial application of 
IFRS 17 (incorporating the amendments) to annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2023. At the same time, the Board issued 
Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9 
(Amendments to IFRS 4) that extends the fixed expiry date of the 
temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 in IFRS 4 to annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. 
 

In December 2021, the IASB issued Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 
9 Comparative Information (Amendment to IFRS 17) to address 
implementation challenges that were identified after IFRS 17 was 
published. The amendment addresses challenges in the presentation of 
comparative information. 
 

For the purpose of the transition requirements, the date of initial 
application is the start of the annual reporting period in which the entity 
first applies the Standard, and the transition date is the beginning of the 
period immediately preceding the date of initial application. 
 

The 
amendments 
are applied 
retrospectively 
for annual 
periods 
beginning on or 
after January 1,
2023, unless 
impracticable, 
in which case 
the modified 
retrospective 
approach or the 
fair value 
approach is 
applied. 

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of 
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 
The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situations where there 
is a sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or 
joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses 
resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a 
business in a transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is 

associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the 
remeasurement of investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has 
become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the 
equity method) to fair value are recogn
loss only to the extent 
associate or joint venture. 
 
 

The effective 
date is yet to be 
set. Earlier 
application is 
permitted. 
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New and revised IFRSs Effective date 
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements  
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 
The amendments to IAS 1 affect only the presentation of liabilities as 
current or non-current in the statement of financial position and not the 
amount or timing of recognition of any asset, liability, income or expenses, 
or the information disclosed about those items. 
 

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or 
noncurrent is based on rights that are in existence at the end of the 
reporting period, specify that classification is unaffected by expectations 
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a 
liability, explain that rights are in existence if covenants are complied with 
at the end of the reporting period, and introduce a definition of 

e
counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or services. 
 

The 
amendments 
are applied 
retrospectively 
for annual 
periods 
beginning on or 
after January 1, 
2023, with 
early 
application 
permitted. 

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and 
IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements - 
Disclosure of Accounting Policies 
The amendments change the requirements in IAS 1 with regard to 
disclosure of accounting policies. The amendments replace all instances of 

rmation is material if, when considered 
together with other information included in an entity s financial 
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the 
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis 
of those financial statements. 
 

The supporting paragraphs in IAS 1 are also amended to clarify that 
accounting policy information that relates to immaterial transactions, other 
events or conditions is immaterial and need not be disclosed. Accounting 
policy information may be material because of the nature of the related 
transactions, other events or conditions, even if the amounts are 
immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information relating to 
material transactions, other events or conditions is itself material. 
 

The Board has also developed guidance and examples to explain and 
demonstrate th -
in IFRS Practice Statement 2. 
 

January 1, 
2023, with 
earlier 
application 
permitted and 
are applied 
prospectively. 
 
The 
amendments to 
IFRS Practice 
Statement 2 do 
not contain an 
effective date 
or transition 
requirements. 

Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors - Definition of Accounting Estimates 
The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting 
estimates with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new 

 
The definition of a change in accounting estimates was deleted. However, 
the Board retained the concept of changes in accounting estimates in the 
Standard with the following clarifications: 

 A change in accounting estimate that results from new information or 
new developments is not the correction of an error 

 The effects of a change in an input or a measurement technique used 
to develop an accounting estimate are changes in accounting 
estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior period 
errors 

The IASB added two examples (Examples 4-5) to the Guidance on 
implementing IAS 8, which accompanies the Standard. The IASB has 
deleted one example (Example 3) as it could cause confusion in light of the 
amendments. 

January 1, 
2023, with 
earlier 
application 
permitted 
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Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be 
adopted in the 
adoption of these new standards, interpretations and amendments, may have no material 
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group in the period of initial application. 

 

New and revised IFRSs    
Effective date 

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes - Deferred Tax related to 
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction 
The amendments introduce a further exception from the initial recognition 
exemption. Under the amendments, an entity does not apply the initial 
recognition exemption for transactions that give rise to equal taxable and 
deductible temporary differences. 
 
Depending on the applicable tax law, equal taxable and deductible 
temporary differences may arise on initial recognition of an asset and 
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects 
neither accounting nor taxable profit. For example, this may arise upon 
recognition of a lease liability and the corresponding right-of-use asset 
applying IFRS 16 at the commencement date of a lease. 
 
Following the amendments to IAS 12, an entity is required to recognise 
the related deferred tax asset and liability, with the recognition of any 
deferred tax asset being subject to the recoverability criteria in IAS 12. 
 
The Board also adds an illustrative example to IAS 12 that explains how 
the amendments are applied. 
 
The amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after the 
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. In addition, at the 
beginning of the earliest comparative period an entity recognises: 

 A deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can 
be utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable 
temporary differences associated with: 
- Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 
- Decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and the 

corresponding amounts recognised as part of the cost of the related 
asset 

 The cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an 
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other 
component of equity, as appropriate) at that date. 

January 1, 
2023, with 
earlier 
application 
permitted 
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Significant Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Uncertainty
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the adoption of accounting policies 
requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. 
These estimates and judgments also affect revenues, expenses and provisions in general and 
expected credit losses. In particular, the Group's management is required to make judgments 
to estimate the amounts and timing of future cash flows. These mentioned estimates are based 
on multiple hypotheses and factors with varying degrees of estimation and uncertainty. Actual
results may differ from estimates as a result of changes in these conditions and circumstances 
in the future. 

Judgments, estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically. The effect of the change in 
estimates is recognized in the financial period in which the change has occurred and only if the 
change affects the same financial period. Moreover, the effect of the change in estimates is 
recognized in the financial period in which the change has occurred and in future periods in 
case the change affects the financial period and future financial periods. 

The Group management believes that its estimates in the consolidated financial statements are 
reasonable. The key estimates used by management in applying the Company's accounting 
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated 
financial statements are as follows: 

 
Useful life of tangible assets and intangible assets
The management periodically re-estimates the useful life of tangible assets and intangible 
assets for the purpose of calculating the annual depreciation and amortization based on the 
general condition of those assets and estimated future useful lives. The impairment loss is 
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year. 

Impairment of intangible assets with infinite life 
Management is required to use significant judgments and estimates to determining whether 
intangible assets with infinite life is impaired through estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group  
Management to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit 
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. Details of the estimates used to 
assess the impairment of goodwill are disclosed in Note 9. 

Income tax 
The fiscal year is charged its related income tax expense in accordance with the regulations, 
laws and accounting standards. The deferred taxes and income tax provision are calculated and 
recognized. 

Lawsuit and other commitments provision 
A provision is booked to meet any potential litigation obligations based on the legal study 
prepared by the Group's legal counsel that identifies potential risks in the future and 
periodically reviews the study

Assets and liabilities presented at cost 
Management reviews the assets and liabilities at cost periodically for the purpose of estimating 
any impairment in value, any impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of 
profit or loss for the year. 

Fair value measurement and valuation procedures 
When estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, the Group uses 
available observable market data. In case of the absence of level 1 inputs, the Company
conducts evaluations using appropriate valuation models to determine the fair value of financial 
instruments. 

End-of-Service Indemnity  
Provision for end-of-service indemnity is booked for any legal or contractual obligations for the 

 according to the current and previous services in accordance with internal 
polices of Group. 
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Provision for slow moving items 
Provision is allocated for slow moving inventories based on the principles and assumptions 
approved by estimates the provision to be established in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Calculation of provision for expected credit losses 
The management is required to use important judgments and estimates to estimate the 
amounts and timing of future cash flows and to estimate the risk of significant increase in credit 
risk for financial assets after the initial recognition and future measurements information for 
expected credit losses  

 
The expected credit loss is measured as an allowance equivalent to the expected credit loss 
over the life of the asset  

 
Determining the number and relative weight of forward looking scenarios for each type of 
products / market and the identification of future information relevant to each scenario 
When measuring the expected credit loss, the Company uses reasonable and reliable future 
information based on the assumptions of the future movement of the various economic factors 
and how these economic factors affect each other. 

 
Probability of default 
The probability of default is a key input in measuring the expected credit loss. The probability of 
default is considered an estimate of the probability of default over a given period of time, which 
includes the calculation of historical data, assumptions and expectations relating to future 
circumstances. 

 
Loss given default 
Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising from default. It is based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due and those that the financer expects to collect, taking 
into account cash flows from collaterals and credit adjustments. 

 
Revenue recognition  
The Group's management uses significant estimates and assumptions to determine the amount 
and timing of revenue recognition under IFRS 15, "Revenue from contracts with customers". 

 
Provision for sales returns and discount 
The Group uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate the number of returns on a 
portfolio level using the expected value method. It is considered highly probable that a 
significant reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised will not occur given the consistent 
level of returns over previous years. 

The Group uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate discounts and the revenue is 
recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be no material reversal. Liabilities for 
discounts on payments to customers are recovered in respect of sales made during the year.

Extension and termination options in lease contracts 
Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases. These terms are used to 
maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of extension and 
termination options held are exercisable both by the Group and the respective lessor. 
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Determining the lease term  
In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create 
an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. 
Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if 
the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). The assessment is reviewed 
if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which affects this 
assessment and that is within the control of the lessee 

 
Discounting of lease payments 
The lease payments are discounted (if any) using the Group s incremental borrowing rate 

R at the 
commencement of lease. 

Hyperinflation 
The Group exercises significant judgement in determining the onset of hyperinflation in 
countries in which it operates and whether the functional currency of its subsidiaries, associates 
or joint venture is the currency of a hyperinflationary economy.  

Various characteristics of the economic environment of each country are taken into account. 
These characteristics include, but are not limited to, whether:  

 The general population prefers to keep its wealth in non-monetary assets or in a relatively 
stable foreign currency;  

 Prices are quoted in a relatively stable foreign currency;  

 Sales or purchase prices take expected losses of purchasing power during a short credit 
period into account; 

 Interest rates, wages and prices are linked to a price index; and  

 The cumulative inflation rate over three years is approaching, or exceeds, 100%.  

Management exercises judgement as to when a restatement of the financial statements of a 
Group entity becomes necessary. 
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 Cash on Hand and at Banks 
This item consists of the following: 
 December 31, 

   
 JD JD 

Cash on hand    
Current accounts at banks    
Terms deposits account *    

    

*  These deposits mature every 3 months and is renewable and the interest rate is 14.9% 
during the year 2022 (18.3% during the year 2021). 

 Accounts Receivable - Net 
a. This item consists of the following: 

 December 31, 
   
 JD JD 

Trade receivables    
Short-term cheques are due within 3 months    
    
Less: Provision for expected credit loss (2,011,486)  (1,934,550) 
Accounts Receivables - Net    

The average credit period ranges from 30 to 90 days. No interest charged on the 
outstanding trade receivable balances. 

The Group has adopted the simplified approach as permitted by IFRS 9. The Group 
measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected 
credit cted credit losses on trade receivables are estimated using a 
provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the 
d rrent financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, 
general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an 
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the 
consolidated financial statements date.  

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor 
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example 
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy 
proceedings. 

The table below illustrates the determination of the risk of trade receivables based on the 
provi  matrix: 

As of December 31, 2022  Receivables are past due  

 

Current 
receivables (not 

past due) * 
Less than 
90 days 

From 91 
days to 

180 days

From 181 
days to 

365 days 
More than 
365 days Total 

 JD JD JD JD JD JD 
Total trade receivables       
Expected credit loss       
Expected credit loss rate       
       

As of December 31, 2021  Receivables are past due  

 

Current 
receivables (not 

past due) * 
Less than 
90 days 

From 91 
days to 

180 days

From 181 
days to 

365 days 
More than 
365 days Total 

 JD JD JD JD JD JD 
Total trade receivables       
Expected credit loss       
Expected credit loss rate       

*  Current receivables include short-term checks due within 3 months. 



 

- 33 - 

b. The movement on the expected credit loss during the year is as follows: 
 

 For the year ended December 31, 2022 
 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 
 JD JD JD 

Balance  beginning of the year    
Provision booked during the year   (245,524)   
Foreign currencies translation (13,579) (57,532) (71,111) 
     Balance  End of the Year     

 For the year ended December 31, 2021 
 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 
 JD JD JD 

Balance  beginning of the year    
Increase in provision due to acquisition of a subsidiary    
Provision booked during the year      
Foreign currencies translation (58,683) (135,522) (194,205) 
     Balance  End of the Year     

 Inventory - Net 
a. This item consists of the following: 

 December 31, 
   
 JD JD 

Raw materials    
Finished products    
Detergents and uniforms      
Spare parts    

    
Less: Provision for slow-moving items (1,187,072)  (1070,914) 

    
Goods in transit     

    
 

b. The movement on the provision for slow-moving items during the year is as follows: 

   
 JD JD 

Balance - beginning of the year   
Add: Provision booked during the year   
Less: Inventory write  off (60,596)  (4,151)
     Balance - End of the Year    

 
 Other Debit Balances  

This item consists of the following: 
  December 31, 

   
 JD JD 

Advances to suppliers     
Prepayments     
Refundable deposits     
Sales tax deposits related to foreign subsidiaries    - 
Others    
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 Intangible Assets  

This item consists of the following: 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 

 
 

Goodwill 

 
 

Trademark 

 
Customer 
relations 

Software 
and 

programs 

 
 

Total 
 JD JD JD JD JD 

Cost      
Balance - beginning of the year      
Additions - - -   

Foreign currencies translation*    -  

     Balance - End of the Year      

Accumulated Amortization      
Balance - beginning of the year - -    
Additions - -    
Foreign currencies translation* - -  -  

     Balance - End of the Year - -    

     Net book value as December 31, 2022      

For the year ended December 31, 2021 

 
 

Goodwill 

 
 

Trademark 

 
Customer 
relations 

Software 
and 

programs 

 
 

Total 
 JD JD JD JD JD 

Cost      
Balance - beginning of the year   -   
Additions due to acquisition    -  
Additions - - -   

Foreign currencies translation (47,002) (4,891,388) (1,163,112) - (6,101,502) 

     Balance - End of the Year      

Accumulated Amortization      
Balance - beginning of the year - - -   
Additions - -    

Foreign currencies translation - - (25,061) - (25,061) 

     Balance - End of the Year - -    

     Net book value as December 31, 2021      

* Exchange adjustments include the effect of hyperinflationary restatement of intangible assets 
value in Tarakya Company for the Manufacture and Trade of Meat and Dairy Products based
on the respective changes in the price index. 

 
a. Goodwill resulted from the acquisition of shares at a value that exceeds the fair value of 

some of the subsidiaries as follows: 

  December 31, 
   
 JD JD

Siniora Food Industries - Palestine     
Diamond Meat Processing    
Tarakya Company for the Manufacture and Trade of Meat 

and Dairy Products    
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b. The trademarks as at December 31, 2022 represents represent the value of the trademarks 
purchased from Distinguished food for Siniora Food Industries Company - Jordan, with an 
amount of JD 1,611,147, In addition to trademarks resulting from allocating the purchase 
price of Tarakya Company for the Manufacture and Trade of Meat and Dairy Products with 
an amount of JD 10,574,586 (the present value is JD 10,473,458 after deducting the effect 
of foreign currency translation as of December 31, 2022) 

c. The impairment in the value of goodwill and trademarks was tested at the end of 2022 and 
2021, and the Group's management concluded that there was no impairment in its value. 
The most important assumptions followed by the Group's management when preparing the 
impairment loss were as follows: 

 

d. Customer relations resulted by allocating the purchase price of Tarakya Company for the 
Manufacture and Trade of Meat and Dairy Products and amortized over a period of 20 years 
from the date of acquisition March  

As of December 31, 2022

Weighted 

Average 

Cost of 

Capital 

Expected 

growth rate 

during next 

five years 

Terminal 

growth 

rate 

Goodwill from the acquisition of Siniora Palestine  

Goodwill from the acquisition of Al Masa for Meat Production. 

Goodwill and trademark from the acquisition of  Tarakya 

Company for the Manufacture and Trade of Meat and 

Dairy Products  

The trademark (Unium) 

 As of December 31, 2021 

 Weighted 

Average 

Cost of 

Capital 

Expected 

growth rate 

during next 

five years 

Terminal 

growth 

rate 

Goodwill from the acquisition of Siniora Palestine     

Goodwill from the acquisition of Al Masa for Meat Production.    

Goodwill and trademark from the acquisition of Tarakya 

Company for the Manufacture and Trade of Meat and 

Dairy Products    

The trademark (Unium)    
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Lease contract 
a. Right of use assets 

The Company leases several assets including properties and cars. The average lease term is 
5 years. The movement for right-of-use assets during 2022 and 2021 as follows: 
 
 For the year ended December 31, 2022 
 Properties Cars Total 
 JD JD JD 
Beginning balance     
Add: Contracts added during the year    
Less: Depreciation for the year (446,970) (359,197) (806,167) 
Less: Cancelled contracts during the year - (54,677) (54,677) 
Foreign currencies translation    

Ending balance     

 
 For the year ended December 31, 2021 
 Properties Cars Total 
 JD JD JD 
Beginning balance
Increase due to acquisition of a subsidiary 
company    
Add: Contracts added during the year    
Less: Depreciation for the year (324,413) (104,083) (428,496) 
Less: Cancelled contracts during the year (82,941) - (82,941) 
Foreign currencies translation (89,465) (101,072) (190,537) 

Ending balance     

 
b. Lease obligations 

The movement for lease obligations during the 2022 and 2021 were as follows: 
 
 For the year ended December 31, 2022 
 Properties Cars Total 
 JD JD JD 
Beginning balance     
Add: Additions during the year    
        Interest during the year    
Less: paid during the year (385,269) (405,075) (790,344) 
Less: Cancelled contracts during the year - (31,850) (31,850) 
        Foreign currencies translation (366,666) (4,075) (370,741) 

Ending balance     

 
 For the year ended December 31, 2021 
 Properties Cars Total 
 JD JD JD 
Beginning balance     
Increase due to acquisition of a subsidiary 
company    
Add: Additions during the year    
        Interest during the year    
Less: paid during the year (445,560) (90,577) (536,137) 
Less: Cancelled contracts during the year (36,822) - (36,822) 
        Foreign currencies translation (384,170) (95,059) (479,229) 

Ending balance     
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The following is an analysis of the maturity of lease obligations as at December 31, 2022 and 
2021: 
 For the year ended December 31, 2022 

 Properties Cars Total 

 JD JD JD 
Less than one year    838,942  
From one to five years    591,976   1,295,205  
More than five years   -    35,402  

Ending balance     

 
 For the year ended December 31, 2021 

 Properties Cars Total 

 JD JD JD 
Less than one year    
From one to five years     
More than five years  -  

Ending balance     

 
c. The following are the amounts recorded in the consolidated profit or loss statement: 

 

 For the year ended December 31, 2022 

 Properties Cars Total 

 JD JD JD 
Depreciation for the year   
Interest for the year  81,417   77,301   158,718  

Total   

 

 For the year ended December 31, 2021

 Properties Cars Total 

 JD JD JD 
Depreciation for the year    
Interest for the year    

Total    
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Borrowed Fund 
This item consists of following: 

December 31

JD JD
Overdraft   
Revolving Loans 
Bank Loans  

 

Analysis of Borrowed Funds Maturity: 

Due Within one year  26,962,832  16,032,746 
Due within more than one year and less than five years  27,519,491  24,167,279 

 

Analysis of Borrowed Funds Interest: 

Fixed rate 
Variable rate  

 

 
The movement on borrowed funds during the years 2022 and 2021 as follows: 
 

For the year ended December 31, 

JD JD
Balance - beginning of the year  40,200,025  
Additions due to the acquisition of a subsidiary 
company 

 -   
 

Borrowed funds  net     
Foreign currency translation differences  (1,233,166)  (1,759,991)

Balance - End of the Year  54,482,323  
 
The interest rate on borrowed funds during the years 2022 and 2021 as follows: 
 

For the year ended December 31

 

Overdraft From 4.75% To 19% From 4.75% To 19% 

Revolving loans From 4.54% To 31% From 3.18% To 27% 
Bank loans From 3.02% To 26% From 2.17% To 16% 

 
Collateral for borrowed funds: 
The Company provide first-degree mortgage by the amount of JD 12,111,480 and 
possessory mortgage on machinery and equipment by the amount of JD 10,713,368 and 
endorsement of the mortgaged machinery and equipment insurance policy by the amount of 
JD 22 million as guarantees against some of the loans above. 
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Deposits and Accrued Expenses
This item consists of the following: 
 December 31, 

   

 JD JD 
Remunerations and accrued salaries    

Sales tax deposits
Provision for lawsuits and other commitments *    

Accrued custome     

Accrued insurance expenses    

Provision for paid leaves    
Sales return provision
Credit cards    

Accrued utilities and phone expenses    

Professional fees    
Social security deposits    
Media and advertising 
Accrued interest expenses    

Advanced payment from customers    

Accrued rent    

Board of dir on    

Board members transportation and representation of committees    

Other     
    

 
*  This item includes a provision booked by the Company against contingent liabilities that may 

arise, the movement on this provision during the year was as follows:  
 

   
 JD JD 

Provision Balance  beginning of the year    
Add:  Increase in provision due to acquisition of a subsidiary    
Add:  Provision (Released from provision) during the year   (167,157) 
Less: Paid during the year   (166,549) 
Less: Foreign currencies translation   (25,486) 
     Balance  End of the Year     

  
 Provision for Employees End-of-Service Indemnity 
The provision for employee end-of service indemnity balance relates to subsidiary companies,
the movement on this provision is as follows: 

  
 JD  JD 

Balance - Beginning of the year   
Add: Increase in provision due to acquisition of a  
  Subsidiary company 

 
  

Add: Additions during the year    

Less: Paid from the provision  (336,462)

Foreign currency translation   (93,768) 
Actuarial loss    

     Balance  End of the Year    
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 Paid-up Capital and Reserves 

a.  Paid-up Capital 
The authorized and paid-up capital amounted to JD 28 million distributed over 28 million 
shares, with a nominal value of one JD per share. The General Assembly approved on April 
21, 2021 to increase the paid-up capital from JD 27 million to JD 28 million which equal JD 1 
million through transferring the amount from retained earnings and distributed as free 
shares to shareholders based on their share percentages of the paid-up capital.  

 
b. Statutory Reserve 

This item represents the accumulated amounts transferred from the annual net income 
before tax at a rate of 10% during the year and prior years in Jordan in accordance with the 
Jordanian Companies Law. This reserve cannot be distributed to shareholders. 

 
c.  Retained Earnings  

The Generals Assembly approved in its ordinary meeting held on April 20, 2022 to distribute 
cash dividends by 17% from Company paid in capital amounting to JD 4,760,000 (The 
General Assembly approved in its ordinary meeting held on April 21, 2021 to distribute cash 
dividend by 15% from Company s paid in capital amounted to JD 4,050,000. The General 
Assembly also approved increasing the company's capital from 27 million dinars to 28 million 
dinars, by one million dinars through transferring the amount from retained earnings and 
distributed as free shares to shareholders based on their share percentages of the paid-up 
capital). 
 
Retained earnings include an amount of JD 518,611 that is restricted against deferred tax 
assets as on December 31, 2022, which cannot be utilized through capitalization or 
distribution unless actually realized, (JD 400,656 as of December 31, 2021). 

 
d. The impact of the purchase of the non-controlling interest 

On April 30, 2018, Siniora Food Holding Limited has signed an agreement to purchase the 
shares of the partner in Diamond Meat Processing Company for the amount of JD 3,752,466. 
The Company has completed the ownership transfer procedures with the legal authorities 
during the second half of the year 2018. The value of the agreement exceeds the carrying 
amount of the net non-controlling interest at the date of acquisition by JD 2,463,786. This 
amount has been booked within the sharehol  equit urchase of non-
controlling intere  

 
e.  Foreign Currency Translation Differences 

This item represents the Company s share of differences resulting from translated and 
consolidated the financial statements of subsidiary company (Tarakya Company for the 
Manufacture and Trade of Meat and Dairy Products).  
 

f.  Non-controlling interests 
This item represents the non-controlling interests of net assets of Trakia Meat and Dairy 
Products Company (subsidiary company) amounted to 23%. 
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Cost of Sales 
This item consists of the following: 
 Note    

  JD  JD 
Finished goods - Beginning of the year    
Finished goods due to acquisition of a  
  Subsidiary company  -  

Cost of production *    
     Cost of Good Available for Sale    
Less: Finished goods - End of the year  (6,293,489)  (4,446,468)

     Cost of Sales    
 

* Cost of production represents the following: 
 
 Note    

  JD  JD 

Raw materials - Beginning of the year     

Raw material due to acquisition of a  
  subsidiary company 

  
-   

Purchases of raw materials and finished  
  inventory during the year 

  
   

     Raw Materials Available for Production     

Less: Raw materials - End of the year  (12,825,785)  (8,992,977) 

     Raw Materials Used in Production     

     
Salaries, wages and other employee benefits     

Social security     

Transportation      

Training      

Health insurance     

     
 
Indirect Industrial Expenses: 
 
Depreciation of property and equipment     
Utilities      
Maintenance     
Storage and transportation of production supplies     
Rents     
Insurance expense     
Tools, uniform and cleaning      
Damaged goods     
Staff meals     
Laboratory tests     
Security expenses     
Research and development     
Others     

    

Cost of Production     
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  Selling and Distribution Expenses 
This item consists of the following:    

JD JD
Salaries, wages, allowances and benefits    
Vehicle expenses    
Sales commission    
Marketing expenses    
Depreciation of property and equipment    
Depreciation of right of use assets    
Exports and tenders expenses    
Social security    
Insurance    
Rent    
Travel and accommodation expenses    
Communications     
Maintenance
Training    
Utilities     
Stationery    
Others    

    

General and Administrative Expenses 
This item consists of the following:    
 JD  JD 
Salaries, wages, allowances and benefits    
Professional fees    
Depreciation of property and equipment    
Insurance    
Travel, accommodation, and transport    
Utilities     
APIC expenses *    
Maintenance    
Communications    
Social security    
Donations    
Memberships, subscriptions and licenses    
Vehicle expenses    
Amortization of intangible assets    
Depreciation of right of use assets    
Printing, stationery and computer accessories    
Trademark registration    
Rent    
Training    
Hospitality    
Bank charges     
Expenses for mortgaging land as collateral for bank loans   - 
Others    

 

* This item represents the expenses paid by Siniora Food Industries Company  Palestine (a 
subsidiary company) to Arab Palestinian Investment Company (the Holding Company) for 
managerial services rendered by the Holding Company. 

 

 Financing Expenses 
This item consists of the following:    
 JD  JD 
Interest expense on borrowed funds    
Interest expense on leasing    
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 Other Revenue and Expenses  Net 
This item consists of the following:   
 JD  JD 
(Losses) gain from foreign currency translations    
Gain from the sale of property and equipment    
Board of Directo remunerations   (45,000)

Board members transportation and representation of committees  (170,500) 

Interest revenue from term deposits    

Supply price difference    

Rent revenue     
Other  Net    
    

 Income Tax 
a.  Income Tax Provision 

The movement on the income tax provision is as follows: 

    

 JD  JD 
Balance - Beginning of the year    
Increase in provision due to acquisition of a subsidiary -   
Income tax paid (1,336,419)  (1,345,755) 
Accrued income tax on cur  profit     
Foreign currency translation    

    Balance  End of the Year    
 

b.  The income tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss consists of the following: 
 

    

 JD  JD 

Income tax expense for the year     

Deferred tax assets for the year  (108,911)  (20,811) 

Deferred tax liabilities for the year (307,222)  - 

    
 

c.  Tax Status 
Siniora Food Industries Company  Jordan has reached a final settlement up to the end of the 
year 2018. The income tax report for 2019 and 2020 and 2021 has been submitted and paid and 
has not yet been audited. In the opinion of the Company's management and its tax advisor, the 
income tax provision booked in the financial statements is sufficient to meet any future tax 
liabilities. 

 

- On February 9, 2012, Siniora Food Industries Company - Palestine obtained from Palestine 
Investment Promotion Agency a full exemption from income tax for five years from January 1, 
2010 to December 31, 2014, in addition to a nominal exemption of 50% of income tax for 12 
years starting from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2029 in which the company will pay taxes 
at a rate of 7.5%. 

 

Siniora Food Industries Company - Palestine (a subsidiary company) has reached a final 
settlement up to the end of the year 2020. The income tax report for 2020 and 2021 has been 
submitted and has not yet been audited. In the opinion of the Company's management and its 
tax advisor, the income tax provision booked in the financial statements is sufficient to meet any 
future tax liabilities. 
 

- Siniora Food Holding Limited and its subsidiaries are not subject to income tax due to the fact 
that there is no income tax in the countries in which they operate. 

 

- Tarakya for manufacture and Trade of Meat and Dairy Products (Subsidiary Company) has 
reached a final settlement up to the end of the year 2021. 

 

- Income tax was calculated for the year ended December 31, 2022 in accordance with the 
effective income tax law, and in the opinion of the management and the tax consultant of the 
Company, the provision allocated is sufficient to meet any tax obligations and there is no need 
to an additional provision for the year ended December 31, 2022. 
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d.  Deferred tax assets 

This item consists of the following: 
 

 For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 December 31,

Included Items 

Balance- 
Beginnin
g of the 

Year 
Released 
Amounts 

Additional 
Amounts 

 
Foreign 
currency 

translation 

Balance- 
End of 

the Year 

  

Deferred Tax 
Assets JD JD JD JD JD JD JD 

Provision for expected credit losses        

Provision for slow-moving inventory        

Provision for end-of-service indemnity        

        

 
The movement on the deferred tax assets account is as follows:  
 
   
 JD  JD 
Balance- Beginning of the year    
Increase due to acquisition of subsidiary company     
Additions    
Released   (109,954) 
Foreign currency translation   (64,928) 
     Balance- End of the Year    

Earnings per Share  
This item consists of the following:  
    
 JD  JD 
Profit for the year     
Weighted average number of shares *    

Earnings per share for the year relating to the Co  
 shareholders / basic and diluted    

* Weighted average has recalculated of shares number for the share portion from the prior 
period profit for the Comp  shareholders on the basis of the number of authorized and 
paid-up capital shares for the period ended December 31, 2022, as the increase in paid-up 
capital was from distributing free shares in accordance with the requirements of IAS (33).
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 Contingent Liabilities 
a. There are several lawsuits filed against Siniora Food Industries Company  Palestine equivalent to JD 

120,755 as of December 31, 2022 to cancel the Company s and/or labor claims. 
In the opinion of the Compan legal advisor and its management, no obligations will arise from these 
lawsuits. (JD 125,350 as of December 31, 2021). 

b. During the year 2021, the Siniora Food Industries Company  Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (subsidiary 
company) was subject to an audit by Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia in 
respect of its customs information. The Authority has issued its final audit report claiming additional 
customs on imports and VAT differences amounting to SAR 4.89 million and SAR 0.25 million, 
respectively. (Which equal to JD 923 thousand and JD 47 thousand respectively). As at December 31, 

 
Authority in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia with an amount of SAR 4.89 million (equivalent to JD 923 
thousand), noting that the subsidiary company has the right to object within 30 days from the date of 
issuing the decision and in the event of the objection, the subsidiary company have to provide a cash 
or bank guarantee. On April 10, 2022, an objection was submitted with guarantee which represents a 
bank guarantee. On June 22, 2022, the Authority issued a notice accepting the objection and 
acknowledging the re-examination of the customs data subject to the objection. In the opinion of the 
legal advisor and th
decision in favor of the Company to collection decision in the future and in the opinion of the 

agement, this matter does not affect t ition. Accordingly, no provision 
for the additional customs claim was booked for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the year 
ended December 31, 2021. The Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 
issued a decision to release the guarantee amount due to end of it specific purpose. 

Subsequent to the date of the consolidated financial statements, a collection and payment order was 
issued on January 23, 2023 by the Zakat, Tax, and Customs Authority in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 
customs on imports and VAT differences for the same inventory with an amount of SAR 4.89 million 
(equivalent to JD 923 thousand), the company has filed an objection against the decision on February 
6, 2023 and in the opinion of the company s legal advisor and tax consultant and its management, it is 
reasonably possible to issue a decision in favor of the company in the collection decision objection and 
accordingly no provision for additional customs claim was provided for the year ended December 31, 2022 

c. There are several lawsuits filed against Tarakya Company for the Manufacture and Trade of Meat and 
Dairy Products (subsidiary Company) equivalent to JD 93,718 as at December 31, 2022 In the opinion 

nagement, no obligations will arise from these lawsuits. (JD 
152,443 as of December 31, 2021) 

d. The Parent Company had contingent liabilities represented in bank guarantees equivalent to JD 
115,023 and bills of collection equivalent to JD 236,093 and letter of credits equivalent to 82,013 as of 
December 31, 2022. (Bank guarantees equivalent to JD 118,175 and guaranteed bank withdrawals 
equivalent to JD 383,641, unguaranteed bank withdrawals equivalent to JD 445,108  bills of collections 
equivalent to 729,183 and letter of credit equivalent 86,563 as at December 31, 2021). 

 

e. Siniora Food Industries Company  Palestine (subsidiary company) had contingent liabilities 
represented in bank guarantees equivalent to JD 584,285 and bills of collection equivalent to JD 
48,042 as at December 31, 2022. (The Company had contingent liabilities represented in bank 
guarantees equivalent to JD 432,205 in addition to bills of collection equivalent to JD 109,965 as at 
December 31, 2021). 

 

f. Tarakya Company for the Manufacture and Trade of Meat and Dairy Products (subsidiary company) 
had contingent liabilities represented in bank guarantees equivalent to JD 30,745 as at December 31, 
2022. (The Company had contingent liabilities represented in bank guarantees equivalent to JD 
882,812 as at December 31, 2021). 

 

g. The Group had unutilized overdraft and revolving loans limits amounted to JD 14,733,356 as at 
December 31, 2022 (The unutilized overdraft and revolving loans ceiling was JD 13,743,165 as 
December 31, 2021). 

h. The value of projects in progress amounted to JD 4,623,933 as at December 31, 2022 and the 
remaining cost of completion to complete the implementation of these projects is estimated to be 
amounted to JD 585,373 and is expected to be completed and to be ready for use by the Group during 
the first half of 2023. (The estimated completion to complete the implementation of these projects to 
be amounted to JD 4,649,282 and is expected to be completed during the year of 2022). 
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 Balances and Transactions with Related Parties 
The Company enters into transactions with companies that fall within the definition of 
a related party as stated in International Accountin ted Party 

. Related parties consist of companies under common ownership and/or 
joint management and control and key management personnel.  Transactions with 
these related parties were made on substantially the same terms that prevailed at the 
same time for similar transactions with customers and third parties. Balances and 
transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, are 
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. 
 

 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 

 Receivables Payables Receivables Payables 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position  JD JD JD JD 

Unipal General Trading Company *  -  - 

National Aluminum and Profile Company  - - - 

Medical Supplies and Services Company *  - - - 

Palestinian Automobile Company *  - - - 

Employees receivables  -  - 

SKY Advertising, Publication and Promotion Company * -  -  

Arab Palestinian Investment Company ** -  -  

Arab financial leasing Company * -  -  

Al Jihan General Trading * - - -  

       Total     

 
The above balances represent trade receivables and payables which bear no interest 
and have no repayment schedules. 

   

 Purchases Sales Purchases Sales 

Consolidated Statement of profit or loss JD JD JD JD 

Unipal General Trading Company * -  -  

Arab Palestinian Shopping Centers Company * -  - - 

SKY Advertising, Publication, and Promotion Company*  -  - 

Arab Palestinian Investment Company **  -  - 

Arab Financial Leasing Company *  -  - 

Al Jihan General Trading *  -  - 

*  A Company owned by the holding company. 
 

**  Holding Company. 
 
The salaries of executive management amounted to JD 2,008,937 for the year 2022  
(JD 1,746,686 for the year 2021). 
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 Risk Management 
The Group is exposed to various financial risks related to its operations, moreover, operating 
risks are inherent in business activities. As such, management endeavors to strike a proper 
balance between risks and rewards and works to mitigate the risks probable adverse effects on 
the Group's financial performance. The most significant risks faced by the Group are credit 
risks resulting from credit sales, liquidity risks, market risks, and geographic risks. Moreover, 
the Group's Board of Directors is responsible for setting up the framework for monitoring and 
managing these risks, accordingly, the Board of Directors together with executive 
management periodically follow up on the various risks to monitor and manage the financial 
risks related to the Group 's operations and activities through preparing and issuing internal 
reports on risk management, thus analyzing the risks to which the Group is exposed. 
 
Capital Risk Management 
The Group manages its capital to ensure its ability to continue as a going concern and to 
maximize the return to stakeholders through achieving an optimal balance between equity and 
debts. Moreover, the Group has a strategy to maintain a reasonable debt-to-equity ratio.
 
Credit Risk 
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations 
resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy to support and 
guarantee the Group's position of late payment through proper documentation by possessing 
necessary documents, as appropriate, with the assistance of its legal advisor. Moreover, the 
Group monitors its credit risk through analysis of the d
risk of financial loss from defaults, as well as checking that the total accumulated credit related 
to certain parties is approved by management. Review and approval of the credit limits are 
performed regularly. 

 
The book value of the financial assets recorded in the Group s financial statements net after 
discounting the impairment losses represent the maximum risks to which the Group could be 
exposed. 
 
The Group has a concentration in credit risk, where the trade receivables of ten customers 
amounted to 76% of the total trade receivables as of December 31, 2022, and the group has a 
concentration in sales, where sales to ten customers amounted to 61% of the total sales for 
the year 2022. (The trade receivables of ten customers amounted to 74% of the total trade 
receivables as of December 31, 2021, and the group has a concentration in sales, where sales 
to ten customers amounted to 68% of the total sales for the year 2021). 
 
Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its 
commitments. The Group mitigates liquidity risk by maintaining reserves and by continuously 
monitoring actual cash inflows as well as matching the maturities of current assets with 
current liabilities as follows: 
 
 December 31, 

    
 JD  JD 
Current Assets    
Less : Current Liabilities   

Excess in Working Capital  
 

The Group manages liquidity risk through diversifying its sources of finance, managing assets 
and liabilities and monitoring their maturities, securing a suitable source of finance at the 
proper time to match the liabilities and payment of operational and investment expenses. 
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Interest Rate Risk 
The sensitivity analysis for the accounts exposed to interest rate risk according to currency is 
as follows: 

Sensitivity Analysis for the year 2022 Sensitivity Analysis for the year 2021 
Effect of the Increase 

in Interest rate by 
1% on the Statement 

of profit or loss 

Effect of the 
Decrease in interest 
rate by 1% on the 
Statement of profit 

Effect of the Increase 
in Interest Rate by 

1% on the Statement 
of profit or loss 

Effect of the Decrease 
in Interest Rate by 1% 
on the Statement of 

profit or loss 
JD JD JD JD 

  (402,000)  
 

Foreign Currency Risk 
The sensitivity analysis for the year 2022 is as follows: 

 

Currency 

Effect of the Increase in 
the exchange Rate by 

5% on the Statement of 
profit or loss 

Effect of the Decrease in 
the exchange Rate by 

5% on the Statement of 
profit or loss 

 JD JD 
EURO  EUR   
Turkish Lira - TL  
Other currencies   

 
The sensitivity analysis for the year 2021 is as follows: 

 

Currency 

Effect of the Increase in 
the exchange Rate by 

5% on the Statement of 
profit or loss 

Effect of the Decrease in 
the exchange Rate by 

5% on the Statement of 
profit or loss 

 JD JD 
EURO  EUR (31,309)  
Turkish Lira - TL  (803,994) 
Other currencies  (44,155) 

 
Regarding the risk of fluctuations in currency exchange rates which applies to payments in US 
Dollar, the Group 's management believes that the foreign currency risk is immaterial due to 
the fact that the Jordanian Dinar is pegged to the US. Dollar. 

 
 Fair Value Hierarchy 
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group (non-specific fair value on 
an ongoing basis): 
We believe that the carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities in the consolidated 
financial statements of the Group approximates their fair value, as the Group's management 
believes that the carrying value is approximated their fair value, due to either their short-term 
maturity or repricing of interest rates during the year. 

 
 Proposed Dividends  
The Board of Directors recommended in their meeting held on March 26, 2023 to the General 
Assembly to distribute cash dividends by 15% of the Company paid-up capital which is 
equivalent to JD 4,200,000.  
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 Subsequent Event 

a. Subsequent to the date of the consolidated financial statements, on January 11, 2023
Siniora Food Industries Company - Jordan registered Siniora Food Industries Company (a 
subsidiary) in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia with an authorized Paid-Up capital of 20 
million Sau -Up 
capital. 
 

b. Subsequent to the date of the consolidated financial statements, the Company  Board of 
Directors decided in its meeting held on February 20, 2023 to increase in the C
capital by 4.7 million shares with a nominal value of one JD per share, in addition to 
premium issuance, by allocating the increase to one or more strategic shareholders (non-
public offer) provided that the price of the issued share, including the nominal value and 
the premium issuance, shall not be less than 90% of the market price of the share as of 
the fifteent
increase. In the event that the procedures for allocating the increase to one or more 
strategic partners have not been completed, it has been agreed to cover the increase 
through th
decisions and approvals are obtained in accordance with the law. The General Assembly 
approved on March 13, 2023 the decision of the Board of Directors. 

 
c. Subsequent to the date of the consolidated financial statements, the General Assembly of 

Tarakya Company for the Manufacture and Trade of Meat and Dairy Products (subsidiary 
Company) approved, in its meeting held on December 28, 2022, to increase the paid-up 
capital of the company through Siniora Food Industries Company, the company's share 
becomes 81% instead of 77% representing an increase by 4%. Noting that the value of 
the increase, including the issuance premium, was paid during January 2023, and the 
legal procedures were completed with the eligible authorities in the Republic of Turkey on 
February 23, 2023.  

 


